
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Licensing Panel

Members of the Licensing Panel of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned to attend a 
meeting to be held at the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Gravesend, Kent on Monday, 25 
October 2021 at 1.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be 
transacted.

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies for absence 

2. To declare any interest Members may have in the applications being 
considered.   When declaring an interest a Member must state what their 
interest is. 

3. Consideration of interim steps following an application for summary review 
of a premises licence for The Kings Head, King Street, Gravesend, Kent 
DA12 2EB 

(Pages 3 - 24)

Part B

Items likely to be considered in private

1. Part B - Application for Expedited Review - The Kings Head, King Street, 
Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB 

(Pages 25 - 50)



Members

Cllr Frank Wardle (Chair)

Councillors: Baljit Hayre
Leslie Pearton

Substitutes: To be notified



Classification: Private
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Licensing Panel

Date: 25 October 2021

Reporting officer: Emily Lane-Blackwell

Subject: The Kings Head, King Street, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB

Purpose and summary of report: 
To consider the interim steps imposed on the premises licence for The Kings Head, King 
Street, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB following receipt of a representation from the Premises 
Licence holder against the decision made on 15 October 2021.

Recommendations:
1. Members are requested to determine this review on its merits

1. Introduction

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) requires the Council (as licensing 
authority) to carry out its various functions so as to promote the following four 
licensing objectives:

1.1.1 The prevention of crime and disorder

1.1.2 The protection of public safety

1.1.3 The prevention of public nuisance

1.1.4 The protection of children from harm

1.2 The 2003 Act requires the council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ that 
sets out the policies the council will generally apply to promote the licensing 
objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act.  The 
council adopted its Statement of Licensing Policy on 20 December 2004.  As 
required by section 5 of the Act this policy has been subject to three yearly 
revisions with the current policy set to expire on 15 April 2024.  The Policy will be 
available at the meeting for reference purposes.

1.3 Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in carrying out 
their functions, they must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182.  The Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario 
or set of circumstances that may arise.  Provided that the licensing authority has 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



2

properly understood and considered the Guidance, it may depart from it when it 
has reason to do so.  However, as the licensing authority is under a duty to have 
regard to the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for any departure from it.  
This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from the 
Guidance result in a determination which gives rise to an appeal or judicial review.  
The Guidance will be available at the meeting for reference purposes.

1.4 A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the Panel in relation to 
an application, along with a copy of the Hearing regulations has been circulated to 
all parties prior to the meeting.

1.5 The relevant provisions within the Licensing Act 2003 allow a quick process for 
attaching interim conditions to a licence and a fast track licence review when the 
police consider that the premises concerned is associated with serious crime or 
disorder, or both.

The Act requires expedited premises licence review applications to be considered 
within 48 hours, pending a full hearing of the issues within 28 days of the date that 
the application was served. 

2. Background

2.1 The current premises Licence for The Kings Head, King Street, Gravesend, Kent 
DA12 2EB is held by Mr Ismail Sucu, he is also the designated premises 
supervisor.

2.2 A copy of the current licence can be seen as Appendix 2

3. The Review Application

3.1 On 13 October 2021 the council received an application from Kent Police for an 
expedited review of the premises licence in respect of Kings Head, King Street, 
Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB as they consider it necessary to take interim steps 
pending determination of the review of the premises licence.

3.2 A copy of the application can be seen as Appendix 3

3.3 A copy of the required certificate can be seen as Appendix 4.

4. Expedited Review Hearing

4.1 A hearing was held on 15 October 2021, where the licensing panel reviewed the 
papers submitted by Kent Police and their supporting evidence.

4.2 The panel made the decision to suspend the premises licence with immediate 
effect.

4.3 A copy of the decision notice sent to the Premises Licence holder can be seen as 
Appendix 5.

5. Representation from the premises licence holder

5.1 A representation was received on 22 October 2021, from the premises licence 
holder Mr Ismail Sucu and his lawyer Mr Jon Payne.

5.2 The representation can be found as Appendix 6.

Page 4



3

6. Decision

6.1 At the hearing the panel are asked to:

6.1.1 Consider whether the interim steps are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives;

6.1.2 Determine whether to withdraw or modify the steps taken

6.2 When considering the case they must take into account:

6.2.1 The senior officer’s certificate that accompanied the application;

6.2.2 The chief officer’s representations (if any); and

6.2.3 Any representations made by the premises licence holder.

6.3 There is no right of appeal to a magistrates’ court against the decision at this 
stage.

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1 Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be 
directed to Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary 
arrangements.

Page 5



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal The Licensing Panel is obliged to determine this application with a view to 
promoting the four licensing objectives.  In making its decision, the licensing panel 
is also obliged to have regards to the Secretary of State's Guidance and the 
Council's adopted Licensing Policy.
The licensing panel must also have regard to all the representations and evidence it 
hears. 

Finance and Value 
for Money 

There are no direct financial requirements at this time. There is the possibility of a 
challenge by way of appeal.

Risk Assessment      

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
     

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
     

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan There are direct links to Corporate objective 1 - Safe Gravesham, there are indirect 
links to Corporate objectives 2 - Stronger Gravesham and 3 - Sustainable 
Gravesham.

Crime and Disorder There are obvious links to community safety and the perception of crime and 
disorder if licensed premsies, particularly those that supply alcohol are not 
managed properly and adequately enforced.

Digital and website 
implications

Basic notices will need updating on the website.

Page 6

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


5

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

The Licensing Act requires premises licence holders to promote the licensing 
objective to protect children from harm.
Licensing authorities must play their part in taking the required action against those 
that don’t appear to be upholding this objective.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Premises Licence
Premises licence number: 18 00127 LAPL02

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

The Kings Head, 8-9 King Street

Post town:  Gravesend Post code: DA12 2EB

Telephone number: 01474  35 84 34

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale by retail of alcohol both on and off the premises, live music, recorded music, 
performance of dance, provision of facilities for making music, provision of facilities for 
dancing, late night refreshment

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Live music
a) 19:00 to 00:00  Monday to Sunday
b)  On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December)
Recorded music
a) 10:00 to 00:30 Sunday 
b) 10:00 to 00:00 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
c) 10:00 to 02:30 Friday and Saturday
d)  On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December)
Performance of dance
a) 10:00 to 00:30 Sunday 
b) 10:00 to 00:00 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
c) 10:00 to 02:30 Friday and Saturday
d)  On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December)
Provision of facilities for making music
a) 10:00 to 00:30 Sunday 
b) 10:00 to 00:00 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
c) 10:00 to 02:30 Friday and Saturday
d)  On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December)
Provisions of facilities for dancing
a) 10:00 to 00:30 Sunday 
b) 10:00 to 00:00 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
c) 10:00 to 02:30 Friday and Saturday

Page 9



2

d)  On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December)
Late Night Refreshment
a) 23:00 to 00:30 Sunday 
b) 23:00 to 00:00 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
c) 23:00 to 02:30 Friday and Saturday
Sale of alcohol
a) 10:00 to 00:30 Sunday 
b) 10:00 to 00:00 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
c) 10:00 to 02:30 Friday and Saturday
d)  On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December)
                                             

The opening hours of the premises
a) 10:00 to 01:00 Sunday 
b) 10:00 to 00:30 Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday
c) 10:00 to 03:00 Friday and Saturday
d)  On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December)

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off 
supplies
On and off

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder 
of premises licence
Ismail Sucu, 258 Amherst Drive, Orpington, Kent BR5 2HW 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Ismail Sucu,

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol

Mandatory conditions

Condition 1 – took effect 24 November 2005
No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence:-

(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of it or
(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 

licence or his/her personal licence is suspended.

Page 10



3

Every retail sale or supply of alcohol made under this licence must be made or 
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Condition 2 – took effect 24 November 2005
Only individuals licensed by the Security Industry Authority (SIA) may be used at the 
premises to guard against:- 

(a) Unauthorised access or occupation (e.g. through door supervision)    
(b) Outbreaks of disorder
(c) Damage

Condition 7 – took effect 1 October 2014
 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale of supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises  

(a) Games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 
require or encourage, individuals to

(i)  Drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol) or

(ii) Drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)

(b) Provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic 
in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective;

(c) Provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period 
of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective;

(d) Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers 
on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the 
effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e) Dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 
than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason 
of disability).

Condition 8 – took effect 1 October 2014
The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it reasonably available.

Condition 9 – took effect 1 October 2014

Page 11



4

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either

  (a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature

Condition 10 – took effect 1 October 2014
The responsible person must ensure that:-

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in 
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 
customers in the following measures:-

     (i)   beer or cider: ½ pint;
     (ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35 ml; and
     (iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml; and

(b) These measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which 
is available to customers on the premises; and

(c) Where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Condition 11 – took effect 28 May 2014
(1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price, which is less than the permitted price.

(2) For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph 1:-

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979(6);

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula:- P = D + (D x V) 
where:- 

(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty 

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol;

Page 12



5

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a premises licence:-

(i)   the holder of the premises licence
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol 

under such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on 
the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the 
supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994(7)

(3)  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph (2) would (apart 
from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that 
sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny.

(4)  (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 
paragraph (2) on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted 
price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of 
duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day.

Embedded Conditions
1. The 5 minute LA eq sound pressure level arising from any amplified music, singing and 

speech from the premises as assessed at a distance of 1 metre from the façade of the 
nearest residential premises shall not cause an elevation of the 5 minute LA eq with the 
specified noise off by more than 5dBA.

2. Where determined by the Council's Environmental Health Services Manager, the level of 
internal amplified sound shall be restricted by the installation and use of a noise limiting 
device. The sound pressure level (L(A)Max) from any amplification system shall be 
determined by the Environmental Health Services Manager and any unauthorised 
adjustment of the level shall not be permitted. 

Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1. The premises will be members of ‘G’ Safe or any similar scheme and will ensure that radios 

are used by trained staff.
2. An incident book will be maintained.
3. All fire regulations will be complied with.
4. No bottles or glasses are to be taken onto the street and door supervisors will monitor this.
5. Notices will be placed at exits to remind customers to respect near neighbours and to leave 

the premises and area quietly
6. Children will be accompanied by an adult at all times and will only remain on the premises 

until 18.00.

Conditions agreed with Responsible Authorities

Page 13



6

1. CCTV is to be installed and working to the satisfaction of the Police and Local Authority 
in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the Information Commissioners 
Office.  Recordings are to be maintained for at least 31 days and made available for 
inspection when required by an authorised officer.  If the equipment fails the police and 
local licensing authority must be informed as soon as possible and immediate steps 
taken to put the equipment back into service.

2. When the premises are open for the purpose of licensable activities there must always 
be a member of staff capable of downloading/providing CCTV to any authorised officer 
who requests any CCTV footage.

3. At all time the Designated Premises Supervisor or a personal licence holder must be 
present to authorise the sale/supply of alcohol.  In the event that either of these 
persons is not present the Designated Premises Supervisor must provide a signed 
letter of authority to a suitable member of staff authorising them to sell/supply alcohol 
on their behalf.

4. A refusal/incident book is to be maintained at all times and made available for 
inspection when required.  All incidents relating to criminal matters must be reported 
to the police.

5. A “Challenge 25” policy will be operated on the premises and posters will be displayed. 
The only forms of ID that are acceptable are: a photographic driving licence, a valid 
passport or a recognised proof of age card containing the official PASS logo, 
photograph and date of birth of the holder.

6. No ID, No Sale notices are to be displayed clearly on the tills.
7. All staff employed on the premises will be fully trained to ensure they understand and 

adhere to the law relating to the sale/supply of alcohol.  This training is to be 
documented and recorded.  All training documents are to be made available for 
inspection by an authorised officer.

8. Two door supervisors to be present on Friday and Saturday evenings from 21:00 hrs 
until the premises closes.  A further two to be present from 22:00hrs until the premises 
closes.

9. At all times whilst open to the public the first floor seated area is to be monitored by a 
member of door staff with regular checks being made of the toilets.

10. These premises are to operate a “drugs policy” and allow police officers to carry out 
drugs related operations on the premises as and when required.

Condition agreed after Licensing Panel hearing of 5 December 2011

1. A door supervisor is to ensure that the ‘acoustic’ doors at the rear of the premises are used 
correctly and there is no excessive noise from the public and that the public do not leave 
the vicinity of the areas fenced rear patio area.

Signed: 

Sarah Kilkie MA MCIEH
Assistant Director (Communities)    DATED:  12 April 2018

            

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20



 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing) Regulations 2005 
 

Notice of determination of application for an expedited 
review of a Premises Licence 

 
 
To: Mr Ismail Sucu 
 
GRAVESHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL being the licensing authority, on the 13 October 
2021, received an application for an expedited review of a premises licence in respect of 
the premises known as The Kings Head, King Street, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB. 
  
On 15 October 2021 a hearing was held to consider the application and having considered 
it the Council have determined as follows. 
 
The Chair advised that, in coming to their decision, the Panel considered all the evidence 
presented by the Police report, the CCTV evidence and the Licence breaches 
including: using unlicenced door supervisors, not having the required numbers of door 
supervisors and refusing to provide CCTV to the police. Therefore the Licence holder has 
failed to up hold three of the Licensing objectives namely the prevention of crime and 
disorder, the protection of public safety and the prevention of public nuisance.  The Panel 
believed that in the light of the breaches there was a continuing risk to public safety if the 
premises continued to operate. 
 
Having considered all those matters and advice given, the Panel suspended the Premise 
Licence with immediate effect lasting until a Licensing Panel Hearing to review the 
Premises Licence is called within 28 days. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated:  15 October 2021         Signed:  
 

       
Mark Lees HND MSc AMIOA MCIEH 

           Regulatory Services Manager 
                  
 

 
 
 
Note: The premises licence holder may make representations against the interim steps 
taken by the licensing authority.  There is no time limit for the premises licence holder to 
make representations on the interim steps, although in practice this would need to be 
completed within 28 days of the application being received by the licensing authority when 
the full review hearing will take place.  On receipt of such representations, the licensing 
authority must (if the representations are not withdrawn) hold a hearing within 48 hours of 
their receipt.  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



This being page 1 of 1 

IN THE MATTER OF A LICENCE REVIEW GRAVESHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
LICENCE NO 18 00127 LAPL02 

 
 

 The Kings Head 
8-9 King Street 
GRAVESEND 

DA12 2EB 
  

 
 

 
 

REPRESENTATION 
 

 
 
 
The Licensing Authority, having considered an application for a Summary Review 
under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the above premises, has 
issued a determination notice suspending the licence as an Interim Step pending the 
full review of the licence. 
 
The Licence Holder hereby makes representations against the imposition of the 
suspension and maintains that the said Interim Steps are not necessary, 
proportionate and/or appropriate in all of the circumstances.  The Licence Holder 
seeks that the Interim Steps are forthwith withdrawn. 
 
In support of the representation, the Licence Holder provides a number of 
statements and exhibits that are to follow this representation and wishes to expand 
on these at a forthcoming hearing. 
 
Dated this 22nd day of October 2021 at 9:30am 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25 Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Consideration of interim steps following an application for summary review of a premises licence for The Kings Head, King Street, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB
	Appendix 2 - redacted
	Appendix 3_Redacted
	Appendix 4_Redacted
	Appendix 5_Redacted
	Appendix 6

	1 Part B - Application for Expedited Review - The Kings Head, King Street, Gravesend, Kent DA12 2EB
	Application for expedieted review - Confidential - Not for publication_Redacted




